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General Funding 

Q: For RFP# PCO-EVID-ACT-NETWRKS2014 “Evidence to 
Action Networks for PCORI Awardees” is there a 
restriction or limit on the contractor’s indirect cost 
rates? For example, we know that PCORI limits the 
indirect cost rate for its research grants to 40%. Does 
the same apply to this IDIQ RFP? 
A: The indirect cost rates provided must be supported by 
a NICRA letter and PCORI expects those rates to be 
government rates utilized on other projects. There is no 
limit on rates, but PCORI will assess responses on a Best 
Value approach. 

Q: Do selected subcontractor’s need to be pre-screened 
by PCORI? 

a. Should all subcontractor fees be rolled into 
our proposal (regardless of any partnerships 
that may already exist between subcontractor 
and PCORI)?   

A: Subcontractors must be eligible to do business with a 
government agency and must not have been debarred. 
All subcontractor costs and fees should be shown 
separately and also reflected in the Total Costs 
proposed. 
 
Q: Page 3: Opportunity Snapshot: PCORI states that the Task orders awarded through the IDIQ 
contract will be cost reimbursable. Will PCORI consider Time and Materials Fixed Price or any other 
contract types? 
A: PCORI will not consider T&M or Fixed Price contract types. 
 

The Patient-Centered Outcomes Research 
Institute (PCORI) is an independent 
organization created to help people make 
informed healthcare decisions. 
 
 
1828 L St., NW, Suite 900 
Washington, DC 20036 
Phone: (202) 827-7700 
Fax: (202) 355-9558 
Email: info@pcori.org 
 
Follow us on Twitter: @PCORI 
 

About This Document 
 

This document answers all of the questions 
received as of June 2. Questions received 
after June 2 will not be addressed. 

Questions are listed exactly as they were 
received. Language that includes personal or 
organization identifiers has been redacted. 
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Q: Page 16: Overview of Criteria for Task Order 1: PCORI uses the word “price” in the text and the 
word “cost” in the Evaluation Criteria table. Can PCORI clarify if the intent was to use two separate 
terms and associated definitions?  
A: It was not the intent of PCORI to use separate terms and associated definitions.   
 
Q: Overview of criteria for Task Order 1: Page 16: For Task Order 1, the RFP states that PCORI reserves 
the right to reject proposals that are unreasonably low or high in price. Does PCORI have a specific 
price range in mind?  
A: PCORI is interested in identifying contractors with strong proposals and budgets that align with the 
activities and intensity of activities proposed. These factors will be taken into consideration as part of 
the competitive evaluation of submitted proposals.  
 
Q: Page 18: Submission Guidelines: PCORI states that “affirmation that the quote is valid for at least 
30 days” but the projected award date is in September which is greater than 30 days.  Will PCORI 
consider 60 day validity?  
A: Yes. 
 
Q: Page 18: Volume I IDIQ: Is PCORI requesting a labor category rate card as part of the IDIQ 
submission?  
A: Labor category rate cards can be used as part of the IDIQ but are not considered a requirement. 
 
Q: Bidders are required to submit past performance information.  Should this be three past 
performances for the bidding team or three past performances for the prime bidder and additional 
past performances for some or all of their subcontractors? 
A: Past Performance information should be for the prime bidder and should reflect projects similar to 
the one being proposed for PCORI. 
 
Q: Overview of Criteria for the IDIQ Contract: Page 16: Is the subcontracting plan part of the 
evaluation criteria? If so, how is it weighted? 
A: Factors for evaluation are provided in the matrix in the RFP that cover specific sections, including 
Technical, Management, Past Performance, and Cost. If a contractor is utilizing subcontractors in its 
efforts, then the subcontracting plan will be part of the relevant weighted section and not considered a 
separate evaluation criteria.  
 
Q: SOW for TO1: Page 12: Do the “Treatment Options for African Americans and Hispanics/Latinos 
with Uncontrolled Asthma” awardees have dedicated funds in their grants to cover the cost of their 
participation in an Evidence to Action network? If so, what do these funds cover (Travel costs for in-
person meetings? Time spent on the Evidence to Action Network?)  
A: Contracts awarded to the “Treatment Options for African Americans and Hispanics/Latinos with 
Uncontrolled Asthma” awardees do not include travel costs associated with participating in the Evidence 
to Action Networks. PCORI has limited funds available to cover certain costs, including travel and lodging 



 
 
for network-related meetings, for these awardees. PCORI has not set aside funds to cover general time 
spent participating in the network activities. 
 
Success Metrics 

Q: Networks: Can PCORI please provide the metrics on how the success of the networks will be 
measured? 
A: PCORI’s three strategic goals are to 1) increase the quantity, quality, and timeliness of research 
information; 2) speed the implementation of and use of evidence; and 3) influence research funded by 
others. PCORI will measure the success of the networks by how well the networks are able to positively 
influence these strategic goals.  
 
Contractors and Subcontractors 

Q: How many subcontractors are preferred? 
A: PCORI expects potential contractors to identify subcontractors relevant for completing the activities 
and tasks outlined in the RFP. We have no preferences for the number of subcontracts associated with 
the activities or tasks outlined in the RFP. 
 
Q: Will each of the three contractors that are selected be working synergistically or independently? 
A: Three contractors will be awarded the IDIQ contract, and one of the three contractors will be 
awarded each task order released under the IDIQ. While each contractor awarded a task order will work 
independently, we do expect that contractors working on task orders during the same time period will 
work synergistically to understand and discuss previous practices, success factors, challenges, and so 
forth.  
 
Q: Page 6: Background: What role will AHRQ have in facilitating exchange between awardees and end-
users and to what degree will the contractor interface with AHRQ? 
A: There may be opportunities for contractors to interface with AHRQ and other contractors or 
organizations working on dissemination and implementation of patient-centered outcomes research 
and comparative effectiveness research findings. Additionally, it is possible that AHRQ and other 
contractors or organizations working on dissemination and implementation activities may be included as 
stakeholders and end users in the Evidence to Action Networks. 
   
Q: Does the contractor lead the initiative for funded awardee engagement or is there a certain 
previously approved procedure for interacting with audiences? * 
A: PCORI expects that the contractor will lead the initiative with guidance from PCORI. The Evidence to 
Action Networks are being developed to 1) ensure there are targeted goals in bringing together 
awardees and end users of PCORI research findings; 2) streamline the engagement processes with 
awardees and end users; and 3) allow for a unified, systematic, and consistent approach to engaging 
awardees and end users. 



 
 
PCORI currently uses emails, conference calls, webinars, in-person meetings, and Chatter to interact 
with awardees and other audiences. 
 
PCORI Communication and Engagement Approaches with Awardees 

Q: Does the contractor lead the initiative for funded awardee engagement or is there a certain 
previously approved procedure for interacting with audiences?* 
A: PCORI expects that the contractor will lead the initiative with guidance from PCORI. The Evidence to 
Action Networks are being developed to 1) ensure there are targeted goals in bringing together 
awardees and end users of PCORI research findings; 2) streamline the engagement processes with 
awardees and end users; and 3) allow for a unified, systematic, and consistent approach to engaging 
awardees and end users. 
PCORI currently uses emails, conference calls, webinars, in-person meetings, and Chatter to interact 
with awardees and other audiences. 
 
Q: How often do you envision communicating with your Evidence to Action Networks/ Asthma 
Evidence Action Network?  (weekly, monthly, quarterly)? What dissemination channels to your 
currently find to be most effective? What are the gaps?* 
A: Potential contractors should provide recommendations to PCORI based on their knowledge and 
experience conducting learning networks and other similar efforts. The recommendations should cover 
a number of factors related to implementation of the Evidence to Action Networks, including but not 
limited to the following: frequency of evaluations, surveys, and reports; intensity of the networks; 
number and frequency of activities (e.g., webinars, in-person meetings); and approximate due dates for 
activities and deliverables. PCORI will evaluate contractors based on their recommendations. 
PCORI currently uses email, conference calls, webinars, in-person meetings, and Chatter to 
communicate and disseminate information to awardees. 
The Evidence to Action Networks are being developed to streamline engagement with awardees and 
allow for a unified, systematic, and consistent approach to engaging awardees and end users of PCORI 
research findings.  
 
Q: What is the current approach for engaging awardees? 
A: PCORI currently uses emails, conference calls, webinars, in-person meetings, and Chatter to interact 
with awardees and other audiences. 
 
Q: Do you currently have a management system to track the activities, impact, and opportunities for 
further engagement with your stakeholders/ awardees? 
A: PCORI currently uses several systems to track activities, impact, and opportunities for further 
engagement with stakeholders/awardees, including PCORI databases, Chatter, and a CRM. 

* This question and the answer appear in another subsection of this document. 
 

                                                           



 
 
 
 
Q: Does cross learning currently exist between awardees? 
A: Yes, cross learning currently exists between some awardees. However, as PCORI coordinates its 
processes for convening projects focusing on similar conditions, methodologies, or other topics, the 
Evidence to Action Networks are expected to 1) ensure there are targeted goals in bringing together 
awardees and end users of PCORI research findings; 2) streamline the engagement processes with 
awardees and end users; and 3) allow for a unified, systematic, and consistent approach to engaging 
awardees and end users. 
 
Implementation of Evidence to Action Networks 

Q: Page 12: Task D: What is PCORI’s desired frequency for evaluations? 
A: Potential contractors should provide recommendations to PCORI based on their knowledge and 
experience conducting learning networks and other similar efforts. The recommendations should cover 
a number of factors related to implementation of the Evidence to Action Networks, including but not 
limited to the following: frequency of evaluations, surveys, and reports; intensity of the networks; 
number and frequency of activities (e.g., webinars, in-person meetings); and approximate due dates for 
activities and deliverables. PCORI will evaluate contractors based on their recommendations. 
 
Q: Page 13: Key Deliverables Table: For each deliverable, can PCORI clarify how many and due dates 
within the period of performance? 
A: Potential contractors should provide recommendations to PCORI based on their knowledge and 
experience conducting learning networks and other similar efforts. The recommendations should cover 
a number of factors related to implementation of the Evidence to Action Networks, including but not 
limited to the following: frequency of evaluations, surveys, and reports; intensity of the networks; 
number and frequency of activities (e.g., webinars, in-person meetings); and approximate due dates for 
activities and deliverables. PCORI will evaluate contractors based on their recommendations. 
 
Q: Evidence to Action Networks could be low, moderate, or high in intensity and corresponding level 
of effort required. Does PCORI have any estimate for how many persons and how many events are 
expected to meet PCORI’s expectations for the asthma research task order?* 
A: Potential contractors should provide recommendations to PCORI based on their knowledge and 
experience conducting learning networks and other similar efforts. The recommendations should cover 
a number of factors related to implementation of the Evidence to Action Networks, including but not 
limited to the following: frequency of evaluations, surveys, and reports; intensity of the networks; 
number and frequency of activities (e.g., webinars, in-person meetings); and approximate due dates for 
activities and deliverables. PCORI will evaluate contractors based on their recommendations. 

* This question and the answer appear in another subsection of this document. 
                                                           



 
 
Across the eight funded asthma projects, awardee teams consist of researchers and patient and 
stakeholder partners. The team sizes vary and usually range from three to upwards of 10 key members. 
At this time, it is not possible to provide a range for the number of end users to be engaged with Asthma 
Evidence to Action Network. 
 
Q: Is there a desired frequency for surveying funded awardees and patients per IDIQ portion and 
Asthma task of the proposal? Do you expect a one time survey for each health area during the 
duration of the scope?  
A: Potential contractors should provide recommendations to PCORI based on their knowledge and 
experience conducting learning networks and other similar efforts. The recommendations should cover 
a number of factors related to implementation of the Evidence to Action Networks, including but not 
limited to the following: frequency of evaluations, surveys, and reports; intensity of the networks; 
number and frequency of activities (e.g., webinars, in-person meetings); and approximate due dates for 
activities and deliverables. PCORI will evaluate contractors based on their recommendations. 
 
Q: How many reports do you anticipate will be developed as part of this contract for the base period? 
Option period? 
A: Potential contractors should provide recommendations to PCORI based on their knowledge and 
experience conducting learning networks and other similar efforts. The recommendations should cover 
a number of factors related to implementation of the Evidence to Action Networks, including but not 
limited to the following: frequency of evaluations, surveys, and reports; intensity of the networks; 
number and frequency of activities (e.g., webinars, in-person meetings); and approximate due dates for 
activities and deliverables. PCORI will evaluate contractors based on their recommendations. 
 
Q: How often do you expect to convene the stakeholders of the Asthma Evidence to Action Network?/ 
Evidence Practice Networks? 
A: Potential contractors should provide recommendations to PCORI based on their knowledge and 
experience conducting learning networks and other similar efforts. The recommendations should cover 
a number of factors related to implementation of the Evidence to Action Networks, including but not 
limited to the following: frequency of evaluations, surveys, and reports; intensity of the networks; 
number and frequency of activities (e.g., webinars, in-person meetings); and approximate due dates for 
activities and deliverables. PCORI will evaluate contractors based on their recommendations. 
 
Q: How often do you envision communicating with your Evidence to Action Networks/ Asthma 
Evidence Action Network?  (weekly, monthly, quarterly)? What dissemination channels to your 
currently find to be most effective? What are the gaps?* 
A: Potential contractors should provide recommendations to PCORI based on their knowledge and 
experience conducting learning networks and other similar efforts. The recommendations should cover 

* This question and the answer appear in another subsection of this document. 
 

                                                           



 
 
a number of factors related to implementation of the Evidence to Action Networks, including but not 
limited to the following: frequency of evaluations, surveys, and reports; intensity of the networks; 
number and frequency of activities (e.g., webinars, in-person meetings); and approximate due dates for 
activities and deliverables. PCORI will evaluate contractors based on their recommendations. 
PCORI currently uses email, conference calls, webinars, in-person meetings, and Chatter to 
communicate and disseminate information to awardees. 
The Evidence to Action Networks are being developed to streamline engagement with awardees and 
allow for a unified, systematic, and consistent approach to engaging awardees and end users of PCORI 
research findings.  
 
Q: Page 14: Period of Performance: What activities does PCORI see taking place in the option periods 
versus the base period?  
A: PCORI expects that activities taking place in the option periods will build upon activities that took 
place during the base period. Projects funded by PCORI are conducted over a three- to five-year time 
period. Awardees’ and end users’ needs and challenges will be different over the lifespan of the projects 
(e.g., awardees with similar interventions collaborating to develop similar protocols to allow for 
aggregation of outcomes; identifying best practices for continued engagement with end users prior to 
research findings being available; developing strategies and materials to disseminate research findings 
once available). Further, not all projects participating in the networks would have started at the same 
time; the base and option periods should also help to facilitate exchanges that accelerate research by 
sharing learnings from others who are further along in the research process. 
 
Q: Do you expect the contractor to develop patient education materials for your research 
dissemination work targeting consumers or will this awardee develop them as part of this contract? 
A: PCORI does not expect the contractor to develop patient education materials for research 
dissemination. Awardees are asked to share their dissemination plans with PCORI, but are not expected 
to develop patient education materials. 
 
Q: Does PCORI expect that all the survey work will be of PCORI grantees and members of their teams?  
Or should bidders also demonstrate the ability to effectively conduct surveys of consumers, providers, 
or other stakeholders uninvolved in PCORI projects, but for whom PCORI research may be relevant? 
A: PCORI expects that awardees and their teams, and potentially end users participating in the Evidence 
to Action Networks, would be surveyed. PCORI does not expect consumers, providers, or other 
stakeholders uninvolved with the project and the network to be surveyed.  
 
Q: Will there be an IRB process needed for the surveys conducted? 
A: Yes, there will be an IRB process needed to conduct the surveys.  
 
 
 



 
 
 
Q: Do you have any specifications for the number of people (awardees/ end users) you would like the 
contractor to survey as part of this contract? In addition to surveys, are you also open to focus groups 
to garner deeper insights? 
A: The number of people that will be surveyed will vary depending on the topic of the Evidence to Action 
Network, the number of funded projects expected to participate in the networks, and the number of 
end users engaged in the network.   
PCORI would be open to contractors conducting focus groups. 
 
Q: How many people do you expect to convene for the large multistakeholder meetings? Can you 
provide guidance on how many meetings you expect to have in person vs virtually?  
A: Meetings conducted for the Evidence to Action Networks would include awardees and/or end users 
in the network. The number of teams included in the meetings would depend on the number of funded 
projects expected to participate in the network. Awardee teams, including research staff and patient 
and stakeholder partners, vary in size, and usually range from three to 10 members. The number of end 
users engaged with a network would vary depending on the topic being addressed by the network.   
Potential contractors should provide recommendations to PCORI based on their knowledge and 
experience conducting learning networks and other similar efforts. The recommendations should cover 
a number of factors related to implementation of the Evidence to Action Networks, including but not 
limited to the following: frequency of evaluations, surveys, and reports; intensity of the networks; 
number and frequency of activities (e.g., webinars, in-person meetings); and approximate due dates for 
activities and deliverables. PCORI will evaluate contractors based on their recommendations. 
 
Awardee Participation in Evidence to Action Networks 

Q: Page 12: Task A: Across the 8 funded Asthma projects, how many total team members exist (e.g., 3-
5 resources per team)? 
A: Across the eight funded asthma projects, awardee teams consist of researchers and patient and 
stakeholder partners. The team sizes vary and usually range from three to upwards of 10 key members.  
 
Q: Will participation in the Asthma Evidence to Action Network be mandatory? 
A: Asthma awardees, including researchers and patient and stakeholder partners, are strongly 
encouraged to participate in the Evidence to Action Networks.   
 
Q: Will participation in the future Evidence to Action Networks be articulated to future possible during 
the RFP process? If so, will they be able to budget for network activities? 
A: PCORI plans to include information about participation in Evidence to Action Networks in future 
PCORI funding announcements. Awardees will be aware prior to being funded that there may be an 
expectation to participate in the networks, and awardees will be provided guidance about whether and 
how to budget for the network activities. 
 



 
 
Q: Evidence to Action Networks could be low, moderate, or high in intensity and corresponding level 
of effort required. Does PCORI have any estimate for how many persons and how many events are 
expected to meet PCORI’s expectations for the asthma research task order?* 
A: Potential contractors should provide recommendations to PCORI based on their knowledge and 
experience conducting learning networks and other similar efforts. The recommendations should cover 
a number of factors related to implementation of the Evidence to Action Networks, including but not 
limited to the following: frequency of evaluations, surveys, and reports; intensity of the networks; 
number and frequency of activities (e.g., webinars, in-person meetings); and approximate due dates for 
activities and deliverables. PCORI will evaluate contractors based on their recommendations. 
Across the eight funded asthma projects, awardee teams consist of researchers and patient and 
stakeholder partners. The team sizes vary and usually range from three to upwards of 10 key members. 
At this time, it is not possible to provide a range for the number of end users to be engaged with Asthma 
Evidence to Action Network. 
 
Other Proposal Content and Page Limits 

Q: The first task is regarding asthma. Should the case studies/experience section only focus on asthma 
or are prospective contractors able to provide experience for other diseases as well since asthma is 
only one task? 
A: PCORI seeks to identify contractors who have the experience and expertise to conduct Evidence to 
Action Networks that address a number of conditions (including asthma), target populations, 
methodological areas of research, and other topics, as needed by PCORI Science programs. Prospective 
contractors should provide examples of experience that supports their ability to implement Evidence to 
Action Networks focusing on a multitude of conditions and topics.  
 
Q: The submission guidelines specify that resumes should be included in a separate section that does 
not count towards the page limit.  Can offerors also include additional examples of relevant work 
product that will enable PCORI to better assess the bidder’s capacity to perform quality work? 
A: Potential contractors may include examples of relevant work products in an appendix; however, the 
appendix for relevant work examples should not exceed five pages.  
 
Q: Volume 1, Volume 2a: Pages 18, 21: Do the subcontractors’ letters of commitment and table of 
contents count towards the page limits for volumes 1 and 2a? 
A: Subcontractors’ letters of commitments and table of contents do not count toward the page limits for 
volumes 1 and 2a. 
 
 
 

* This question and the answer appear in another subsection of this document. 
                                                           



 
 
Q: Page 22: Subcontracting Plans: Subcontracting plans can be significant in length.  If needed, will the 
subcontracting plan count within the 10 page limit of the task order response or can it be included in 
the appendix without a page limit? 
A: Subcontracting plans will not count toward the 10-page limit for the response to the task order and 
can be included in an appendix; however, the appendix for subcontracting plans should not exceed two 
pages.    
 
Number of Networks, Task Orders, and Projects 

Q: Does PCORI have an estimate for the total number of task orders they intend to release under this 
IDIQ and whether any of these will be released shortly after the IDIQ contracts are awarded? 
A: The total number of task orders to be released has not been determined at this time. 
 
Q: How many Evidence to Action Networks do you anticipate creating? 
A: The number of Evidence to Action Networks to be created has not been determined at this time.  
 
Q: What is the desired quantity of current relevant projects? 
A: Across all five Science programs, PCORI has currently funded 280 research projects. PCORI will 
continue to fund more research projects each year. 
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